At a Public Hearing Meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors

Held on Thursday, July 21, 2011 – 7:00 p.m.

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
          T. Wayne Birdsong         
C. Eric Fly, Sr.
          Wayne M. Harrell

          Harris L. Parker

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

BOARD MEMBER ABSENT
Charlie E. Caple, Jr.
OTHERS PRESENT

George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator

Henry A. Thompson, Sr., County Attorney

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue

Chequila H. Fields, Director of Social Services

Deborah A. Davis, Assistant to County Administrator

Shannon D. Fennell, Assistant to Director of Planning

Andre M. Greene, Director of Planning

W. Travis Luter, Building Official

Item 1. Call To Order

The July 21, 2011 public hearing meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to order by Chairman Parker.

Item 2. Approval of Public Hearing Agenda

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR HARRELL and carried: RESOLVED that the agenda of the July 21, 2011 public hearing of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors is hereby approved, as presented.
Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker,  

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisors Caple, Tyler

Item 3. Public Hearing
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR HARRELL and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby enters public hearing to consider:  (1) Rezoning Application #2011-05, Edward Rose, applicant; (2) Comprehensive Plan Amendment #2011-01, Meadowview Biological Research Station, applicant;  and (3) Conditional Use Permit #2011-01, Iluka Resources, applicant.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Harrell, Parker 

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Absent during vote: Tyler

Item 4. Public Hearing Items

Item 4a. Rezoning Application #2011-05

The staff report was presented by Shannon D. Fennell, Assistant to Director of Planning.

The applicant, Edward C. Rose, is requesting to rezone approximately 0.5 acres of tax map number 61A4-A-1C from R-1, General Residential District to B-2, General Business District in order to locate an indoor flea market/thrift store at 10347 General Mahone Highway. The property in question is located on the north side of General Mahone Highway (U. S. 460) approximately 11,300 feet west of the corporate limits of the Town of Wakefield in the Wakefield Election District.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 11, 2011 to consider this request and voted unanimously (7-0) to approve Rezoning Application #2011-05 and the Commission has forwarded the item to the Board of Supervisors with a favorable recommendation.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request for the following reasons:
1. A rezoning from R-1, General Residential to B-2, General Business would be consistent with the County’s Comprehensive Plan which has the site in question designated for future commercial development.

2. The proposed use of the subject property for an indoor flea market/thrift store would be compatible with surrounding land uses in the area as the site currently adjoins property zoned business and for use commercially.
3. The existing building has been used in the past for commercial purposes and as a church. 

4. There appears to be sufficient area to provide off street parking in accordance with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance.

5. There has been no public opposition to the request.

Item 4b. Public Comment on Rezoning Application #2011-05

Item 4c. Board Comment – none

Item 4d. Comprehensive Plan Amendment #2011-01- Meadowview Biological Research Station, applicant
Staff report was presented by Shannon D. Fennell.
The applicant, Meadowview Biological Research Station, is requesting to amend Sussex County’s comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map for the Blackwater/Newville/Waverly/US Route 460 Planning area to change the designation of three (3) certain areas of real property, identified as tax map numbers 12-(2)-1, 12-(2)-2 and 12-2(A)-14, located on the north and south sides of Route 602 (Cabin Point Road) in the vicinity of Joseph and Dobie Swamps.  The Comprehensive Plan Amendment proposes to change the designation from future Residential to future Agricultural/Forested/Open Space.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 11, 2011 to consider this request and voted unanimously (7-0) to approve Comprehensive Plan Amendment #2011-01. The Planning Commission has forwarded the item to the Board of Supervisors with a favorable recommendation.  The Commission recommended approval of the request for the following reasons:

1. The properties in question possess several development constraints that make them undesirable and unsuitable for residential development.

2. The proposed amendment would make the Comprehensive Plan consistent with the current zoning classification of the subject properties.

3. The proposed amendment would serve to preserve open space and provide recreational opportunities.

4. There has been no public opposition to the request.
Item 4e. Public Comment
There were no comments from the Public.
Board Comment
There were no comments from the Board.
Phil Sheridan, Meadowview Biological Research Station staff member, made brief comments.
Item 4f. Conditional Use Permit #2011-01, Iluka Resource, Inc., applicant

Staff report was presented by Shannon D. Fennell, Assistant to the Director of Planning.
Pursuant to Section 16-22, Sub-section (27) of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant, Iluka Resources, seeks a conditional use permit to store mineral sand on approximately four (4) acres of tax map 48-(A)-16. The affected property is zoned A-1 General Agricultural. The A-1 Zoning District permits the storage of mineral sand with a conditional use permit.

The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider this request on June 6, 2011 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of Conditional Use Permit #2011-01, subject to the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall submit an erosion and sediment control plan to the Planning Department for review and approval and obtain a land disturbance permit prior to the construction of the asphalt pad or the storage of any mineral sands on the subject property.

2. A fifty (50) foot wide buffer of trees shall be maintained on the north, south and west sides of the proposed storage area and shall not be removed unless permission is granted by the Sussex County Planning Department.

Item 4d. Public Comment on Conditional Use Permit Application #2011-01

There were no comments from the public.
Item 4e. Board Comment on Conditional Use Permit Application#2011-01
There were no comments from the Board.

Item 5. Return to Regular Session

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby returns to regular session.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 6. Board’s Action on Public Hearing Items

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR HARRELL and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Rezoning Application #2011-05, Edward C. Rose, applicant, to wit:

WHEREAS, Edward C. Rose did on June 1, 2011, make application identified as ZMA #2011-05, to the Sussex County Planning Department, to rezone approximately 0.5 acres of a 2.290 acre parcel from R-1, General Residential to B-2, General Business. The applicant is proposing the location of an indoor flea market/thrift store at 10347 General Mahone Highway. The subject property is identified as Tax Map Number 61A4-(A)-1C, Wakefield Election District; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has given due consideration to all the factors set forth in the staff report prepared by the Planning Department; and
WHEREAS, the notice and hearing requirements of Sections 15.2-2204 and 15.2-2285 of The Code of Virginia (1950, as amended) have been observed; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has given due consideration to the interests of the surrounding area and to the interests of the general public; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the interests of the adjacent properties and the interests of the general public would not be adversely affected by the requested rezoning; and
WHEREAS, the Sussex County Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 11, 2011 concerning the request and after careful consideration of all the factors concerning this request, did vote 7 to 0, to forward this request to the Board of Supervisors, with a recommendation for approval; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has duly reviewed the recommendation of the Planning Commission and is of the opinion that the approval of this request is in the public interests of public necessity, convenience and good zoning practices;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex this 21st day of July hereby amends the Official Zoning Map of the County of Sussex as follows: Rezone approximately 0.5 acres of Tax Map Number 61A4-(A)-1C from R-1, General Residential to B-2, General Business.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Comprehensive Plan Amendment #2011-01, Meadowview Biological Research Station, applicant, to wit:

WHEREAS, Meadowview Biological Research Station, did on June 9, 2011, submit a formal request identified as Comprehensive Plan Amendment #2011-01, to the Sussex County Planning Department, to amend Sussex County’s Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map for the Blackwater/Newville/Waverly/U.S. Route 460 Planning Area to change the designation of three certain parcels identified as tax map numbers 12-(2)-1, 12-(2)-2, 12-(A)-14 from future Residential to future Agricultural/Forested/Open Space.  The subject properties are in the Newville District; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has been given due consideration to all the factors set forth in the staff report prepared by the Planning Department; and

WHEREAS, the notice and hearing requirements of Section 15.2-2204, of The Code of Virginia (1950, as amended) have been observed; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors have given due consideration to the interests of the surrounding area and to the interest of the general public; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the interests of the adjacent properties and the interests of the general public would not be adversely affected by the requested rezoning; and

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 11, 2011 concerning the request and after careful consideration of all the factors concerning this request, did vote 7 to 0, to forward this request to the Board of Supervisors, with a recommendation for approval; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has duly reviewed the recommendation of the Planning Commission and is of the opinion that the approval of this request is in the public interests of public necessity, convenience and good zoning practices.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex this 21st day of July hereby amends the Official Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map of the County of Sussex as follows: Amend Sussex County’s Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map for the Blackwater/ Newville/Waverly/U.S. Route 460 Planning Area to change the designation of three certain parcels identified as tax map numbers 12-(2)-1, 12-(2)-2, 12-(A)-14 from future Residential to future Agricultural/Forested/Open Space.
Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves Conditional Use Permit Application #2011-01, Iluka Resources, applicant, to wit:

WHEREAS, Iluka Resources, Inc, did on May 2, 2011, make application identified as CUP #2011-01, to the Sussex County Planning Department, to store mineral sands on a new asphalt pad  located on approximately four (4) acres of tax map 48-(A)-16, Stony Creek District; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has given due consideration to all the factors set forth in the staff report prepared by the Planning Department; and

WHEREAS, the notice of public hearing requirements of Section 15.2-2204, of The Code of Virginia (1950, as amended) have been observed; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors finds that the interests of the adjacent properties and interests of the general public would not be adversely affected by the requested Conditional Use Permit; and

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Planning Commission held a public hearing on June 6, 2011 concerning the request and after careful consideration of all the factors concerning this request, did vote 6 to 0, to forward this request to the Board of Supervisors, with a recommendation for approval; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has duly reviewed the recommendation of the Planning Commission and is of the opinion that the approval of this request is in the public interests of public necessity, convenience and good zoning practices; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sussex this 21st day of July hereby approves the said Conditional Use Permit #2011-01 subject to the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall submit an erosion and sediment control plan to the Planning Department for review and approval and obtain a land disturbance permit prior to the construction of the asphalt pad or the storage of any mineral sands on the subject property.

2. A fifty (50) foot wide buffer of trees shall be maintained on the north, south and west side of the proposed storage area and shall not be removed unless permission is granted by the Sussex County Planning Department. 

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 7. Adjournment

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adjourns the July 21, 2011 public hearing meeting.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

At a Regular Meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors

Held on Thursday, July 21, 2011 – 7:30 p.m.

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
          T. Wayne Birdsong         
C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Wayne M. Harrell

          Harris L. Parker

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

BOARD MEMBER ABSENT
Charlie E. Caple, Jr.
OTHERS PRESENT

George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator

Henry A. Thompson, Sr., County Attorney

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue

Chequila H. Fields, Director of Social Services

Deborah A. Davis, Assistant to County Administrator

Shannon D. Fennell, Assistant to Director of Planning

Andre M. Greene, Director of Planning

W. Travis Luter, Building Official

Item 1. Call To Order

The July 21, 2011 regular meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to order by Chairman Parker; The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all; the Invocation was offered by Chairman Parker.

Item 2. Approval of Regular Agenda

George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator, requested that the following amendments be made to the regular agenda of the July 21, 2011 Board of Supervisors meeting: (1) Item #8, omit Personnel Matters under Closed Session and make that a matter of possible litigation. Mr. Morrison advised that he defers to the County Attorney Thompson to provide more details and advice.
County Attorney Thompson responded that matter (possible litigation) may not be included under Closed Session. It has to be one where the public body has a direct interest. 
Mr. Morrison advised that given that information (by the County Attorney), then under item #7, Under New Business, add Item a, Sussex Service Authority, presentation by Attorney David Bailey;
Supervisor Fly requested that the following amendments be made to the regular agenda of the July 21, 2011 Board of Supervisors meeting: (3) Under New Business, as Item b, New County Administrator; (4) Under Unfinished Business, add Item b, Redistricting; (5) Under Unfinished Business, add Item c, Line of Duty Act.
Chairman Parker: “I will rule on 6b, redistricting. The redistricting ordinance has already duly enacted by the Board of Supervisors and further discussion on this redistricting is now at the U. S. Department of Justice for approval or disapproval by the June 30, 2011 redistricting ordinances. If the Supervisors wish to remove or repeal the redistricting passed by the Board of Supervisors, then he may move that a public hearing be scheduled to consider re-appealing the now adopted redistricting ordinance. The scheduling of a public hearing to repeal the existing redistricting ordinance will require a majority vote of the Board of Supervisors here present. So I am going to call for the question and move that we already discussed this and by the time that we start to tinker with it again, we are penalizing the citizens of this County; we are penalizing the fact that we are going to lose some funds if we don’t move and to get the deadlines. So I am going to rule that we don’t put it back on the agenda and the Chair has the opportunity to do that and you have the opportunity to override or appeal to the Board.”

Supervisor Fly: “My intention of putting 6b, redistricting, on the agenda is not to repeal the ordinance, but simply to discuss the ordinances already passed; so I would move that it be placed on the agenda.”

Chairman Parker: “You have heard his request. I’ve asked the Board to make a decision. I don’t want it put back on the agenda, but if the Board wants to overrule me, now is the opportunity. The Chair will entertain a motion.”

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors place redistricting back on the agenda, as Item 6b, under Unfinished Business.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell

Voting nay: Supervisor Parker

Abstaining: Supervisor Tyler

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Supervisor Fly asked that 6c, Line of Duty Act approved to be placed on the agenda. It is an issue that the Board needs to make a decision on.

Item 3. Consent Agenda

Supervisor Fly requested that Items 3a through 3h (all of the minutes) be removed from the Consent Agenda, to be discussed separately, to be moved to the Regular Agenda. 
Supervisor Fly advised that he thinks that there are some additions that need to be made to the minutes.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR HARRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of the Regular and Consent Agendas with the recommended amendments.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Supervisor Fly advised that the minutes of the May 5, 2011 meeting are notes from the County Attorney. He believes that they are incorrect and don’t think they are necessary. He also advised that Mr. Morrison haD a recording device at that meeting and minutes were generated for that meeting. He asked that these minutes be stricken and not be approved.

County Attorney Thompson: “They are not minutes. I always take my notes and I don’t know why they were put there in there. I always take notes and always pass it on to Administration. But there are not minutes for approval. 

Supervisor Harrell advised that May 5, 2011 could not be a meeting with only two Supervisors there. It can’t be a minutes that we approve minutes for. 

Supervisors Birdsong advised that Mr. Thompson gave a report at the following Board meeting after this public hearing as to what went on at the public hearing. He agreed that the May 5, 2011 notes are out of order and should not event be included.
Supervisor Tyler advised that he is not sure if it is in the County’s policy that one takes minutes. The notes are a reflection of what transpired at that setting.

Supervisor Birdsong advised that after the May 5, 2011 public hearing, the County Attorney gave a verbal report to the Board. The Board asked him questions once he finished his report and he answered all the questions that were asked and the Board was satisfied with his report. He further stated that he does not see the need that once the attorney has given a verbal report and the Board has no problem with his report, then to follow up now with a written report that may have more than what he reported verbally or may have something that he left out of what he reported.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR HARRELL and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of striking the May 5, 2011 notes from the record.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY, and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of the minutes of the following meetings: (1) May 17, 2011 Redistricting Work Session; (2) Minutes of the May 19, 2011 Public Hearing; (3) Minutes of the May 19, 2011 Regular Meeting; (4) Minutes of the May 25, 2011 Recessed Meeting.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby defers the Minutes of the June 16, 2011 Redistricting Work Session, June 16, 2011 Public Hearing and the June 16, 2011 Regular Meeting until the August 18, 2011 meeting, allowing for more time to review.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 4. Standing Reports

Item 4a. Health Department – absent

Item 4b. County Administrator’s Report

Item 4b1. Emergency Radio Communication Hardware Replacement


George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator, reported that on Wednesday, July 6, 2011, he was contacted by Mr. Eddie T. Vick, Public Safety Coordinator, indicating that he had received an email from MACE informing that the County’s worst case scenario has arrived.  There are no more spares for an Exciter (transmitter) or Receiver as well as no replacement or factory repair available.

A memorandum has been received from the Public Safety Coordinator which describes in detail the severity potential of this problem. He further advised that this matter was brought before the Board over two years ago and at that time, this matter was referred to the Finance Committee and any action was deferred to a subsequent budget year.  Unfortunately, the worst case scenario has come to fruition. Should an exciter (transmitter) or received be lost, the potential is there that the system could be down County wide and it could take months before any replacement system could be activated to bring the communications back on line.

Action Requested: The Board of Supervisors is asked to consider an emergency appropriation of $1.5 million to address this safety communication issue.

Mr. Eddie T. Vick, Public Safety Coordinator, addressed the Board. He advised that the system cannot be repaired anymore. We envision that we can probably replace the hardware of the system, meaning that we can use parts of what we have, but we will have to replace the hardware pare of the system and that will take months to do that. Mr. Vick stated that he would like to find out if it is possible to do an emergency order, but that is something that the County Attorney would have to deem an emergency. If the current system fails, it cannot be fixed. The hardware components will no longer be made. This means that if a failure occurs on one of the two channels, there would be no radio communications, which will put responders at risk.

Supervisor Fly: “This is an item where we knew we were gambling with. And this is one of the items that we have been taking in and out of the budget knowing that we may have to put it back in. So we have reached a point. Are we now at the end of the rope?”

Mr. Vick: “This is the end, there is no more.”

Supervisor Fly: “Is this an analog system?”

Mr. Vick: “This is an analog system.”

Supervisor Fly: “And we need the $1.5 million to transition us, which is required to go digital?
Mr. Vick: “We are not required to go to digital; we can go analog on the hardware part. Probably, our preferred method would be to try to get something that we could do digital or analog, but to go digital, we will have to change more components to make that work. It just depends on how much money you want to spend. Maybe we can do what we can now and phase in a little later on is what I would suggest.  Originally, we were talking about a phase in process where we were planning to use some of the parts from the old system. But when we can no longer get those parts; that throws that idea out of the window.”

Chairman Parker” Mr. Vick, where have you searched for these parts?”

Mr. Vick: “The vendor (Mr. Bruce Edwards) is here and can answer that question.”

Mr. Edwards: “The problem you run into is the manufacturer of the backbone system is a company called T Communications. This system was manufactured in 2001 and shortly after that, between 2002 and 2006, they discontinued manufacturing the current system. The new system that they are manufacturing now, the parts are not compatible with your old system. Between 2006 and now, we had a box of spare equipment that we have been using to limp along and take the pieces that broke, send them back to factory and have them repaired. The last time we tried that, they said no more, we are not repairing them, we don’t have any parts; we have looked everywhere that we know to look. As far as cannibalizing parts, you’re just putting a band aid on it. You don’t know what you’re getting, if you are buying it out of a system, you don’t know whether it‘s been through an electrical surge, a lightning strike or how it’s been taken care of. It’s electronic, so if it’s not packaged and shipped properly, when you get it, it might not work. And in a public safety environment, I would not recommend that.” 

Chairman Parker: “So if we spend this $1.2 or $1.5 million dollars on a system that is going to be recommended that will get us up and running, what is the projected life span of this system, since the other didn’t last 10 years?”
Mr. Edwards:  “Typically, 10 to 15 years is the life of the system. As far as why this one was less than that, my only thing would be a speculation, is that it was purchased at petty close to the end of the life that they were making it anyway. I would relate it to you buying a 2011 car in December, when in January you’re getting the 2012’s. But that’s just a speculation on my part.”
Chairman Parker: “So if we spend this $1.2 million, we don’t even have any idea just how long this $1.2 million is going to carry us into the future.”

Supervisor Fly: “I want to know, what are we going to get for $1.5 million? Here’s my concern – we spend millions on the system we have now and it didn’t last nine years. And it didn’t last nine years because, to be honest, somebody sold us a lame duck, an end of the year model. And there are some requirements to carry parts for “x” number of years on things that you sell. So at $1.5 million dollars, what are we actually getting? “

Mr. Edwards: “What we had talked to Mr. Vick about was upgrading one channel to digital; we talked about replacing all of the analog equipments in the houses around. There are so many different ways to do it, it’s a matter of deciding.”
Supervisor Fly: “Tell me the $1.5 million dollar way.”

Mr. Edwards: “Well, the microwave connections between Courthouse, Jarratt and Waverly would need to be replaced in order to upgrade to digital equipment. It’s not IB based, so you would replace that. That’s probably ¼ of your money. Until you do that, you can’t even think about going digital.”
Supervisor Fly: “And does that require additional stations, because we are pretty far apart right now.”

Mr. Edwards: “It’s probably going to require, we’ve had a vendor to look at it and they are suggesting a ring so that if you have one failure, it kind of backs itself up.”
Supervisor Fly: “So you are talking about where everything feeds around in a circle – it that a continuous loop or if one falls out, we’ve got a hole. Can it reverse itself around?”

Mr. Edwards: “That is what they are telling me. I am not an expert on that, but that’s what they are telling me and that’s what I asked them to design. Right now, you have an antenna pointing towards Jarratt and at Jarratt, it points back here. So they are talking.  If the equipment here fails on that microwave, then you lose it, if it fails there, you lose it. So, our idea was to have it so that there was really no one single point of failure. Then you look at replacing all of the Tait equipment, and that really takes care of most of the funding. You may have some funding left to upgrade half of the subscriber units and we talked about doing the Sheriff’s Department first. And bringing them up to digital. All the numbers that we have are purely budgetary; we have not had any of the microwave people come here or the other hardware people. They really need to see what you have on site.”
Supervisor Fly: “You presented us a phase in program back in the fall.”

Mr. Vick: “Several years ago, we actually talked about the phase in program, but that’s based on going digital. Remember that was based upon the existing Sheriff’s Department equipment that we could use on the fire and rescue channel. But it’s not supported anymore and there are no more spare parts. That was the premise that is was built upon.

Mr. Edwards:  “The phase in part was doing the Sheriff’s Department to digital on all three sites, part of the microwave; then the dispatch consoles, then you are talking about Phase II would be converting Fire and EMS and Phase III would be bringing up a second channel for Fire and EMS that they don’t have now. And then to be determined would be bringing in extra microwave links in between. But we really think we need to do that up front. The bottom line, the way I see it, you either need to replace everything you have over there in each one of the sites with all new analog equipment or you need to move toward digital by replacing the microwave; it’s just a matter of which way you go now.”
Supervisor Fly: “Analog, aren’t we just heading down a dead end road?”

Mr. Edwards:  “In my opinion, it is. I kind of make it like the television situation, back when the FCC said, okay – you got to have this box to receive digital signal. At some point somewhere, everybody is going to have to be digital, we just don’t know where that point is right now.”

Chairman Parker: “I just think we need to start talking digital now. I don’t know why we’re always one step behind. That’s exactly where I see us going. If the latest technology is digital and we are going to spend $1.2 million or $1.5 million, why are we talking about something that’s back there when I was a private in the army?”
Supervisor Tyler: “Obviously, we have a critical situation and we have to do something. My  question is – I suppose you serve as a consultant to Mr. Vick?” (directing the question to the vendor).

Mr. Edwards: “We actually hold the maintenance contract on the equipment and we have been working with him since 2006.”

Supervisor Tyler: “I am wondering whether we need to do a comprehensive analysis of what other localities are doing and put it in a comparable summary; such that should something happen, then we would not be here with antiquated equipment. So I would think that this is the direction we need to go. Do analysis of what other localities are doing and from there, get something compatible.”
Chairman Parker: Have we done an analysis already Mr. Vick, is that what you are telling us now?”

Mr. Vick: “Are you asking me what everybody else is doing?”

Chairman Parker: “No, I’m asking you have we done an analysis so we can get a good recommendation as to whether we want to go all digital and spend 1.5 or 1.2 million to get where everybody else is.”

Mr. Vick: “I don’t think we need an analysis for that, the Board needs to make a decision as to whether you want to spend $1.5 million or do we want to spend $5 million.”

Supervisor Tyler: “I don’t think the Board can make a decision right now until we know what’s out there.”

Mr. Vick: “Some are digital, but most surrounding us are not digital.”

Supervisor Tyler: “What type of equipment do they have? What is the capacity of the equipment? What options do we have? We don’t have any information. We will be voting tonight on money.”

Mr. Edwards: “Mr. Tyler, if I could, between the FCC, the Association of Public Safety dispatchers and host of other people with a lot of alphabet in their names have basically standard of P25 digital for public safety applications. What that does for a locality is it increases the price of the equipment. I can sell you an analog radio for 1/3 to1/2  of what I can sell you a P25 digital radio. The federal government, Safecom, there’s all different organizations that say public safety should go P25. The FBI has pushed the P25; there are other localities, I believe Dinwiddie County has P25, but you go to Southampton and Isle of Wight and they have a similar, newer system than what you have here now. I do believe, as Mr. Parker has said, if you going to spend this kind of money, you need to seriously consider buying at least digital capable equipment. Even if you have to run it in analog mode until you can get the other subscriber units up to where you can turn it on in digital mode.”
Chairman Parker: “I think I am going to appoint a committee to work with you Mr. Vick. Can we get Mr. Edwards to serve on your committee as a non paid consultant?”
Mr. Vick: “I do want to go on the record that I am saying that this could fail tomorrow or it could fail right now and you don’t have any communication. So while you are doing the studies and the committees, I understand your rationale behind that. You have had 2 years to do that, we don’t have any more time left to do that. Because you don’t have any more time left. If the system fails, there is no fix for it. That’s why I am trying to say. You guys can do all the studies you want, but if this system fails, there’s nobody that’s going to be able to respond to an emergency because we are not going to be able to send anybody anymore. It’s critical.”
Chairman Parker: “We will go back to the radios we were using for 20 years or more.”
Mr. Vick: “You don’t have that, they are all pooled out. There is no such thing as that anymore.”
Chairman Parker: “Well, send them back to the closet and have them pull them out and put batteries in them. I know what you are saying. Been there, done that with old ancient radio systems. I understand communication systems; I am not technical, but I understand how important it is.”
Supervisor Fly: “If I can make a recommendation. If Mr. Vick can research some things and MACE can research some things and recess tonight until the Finance Committee on Thursday, to further discuss, would that be acceptable?

Chairman Parker: “Yes, that would be acceptable. In the meantime, if we have a failure, do what nations and do what organizations have always done, use what you got. That’s all we can ask you to do.”

Mr. Vick: What information would you like?”
Supervisor Fly: “Digital, let’s look at implementation of a plan up to $5 million, $6 million and will bring in the Treasurer. If we have to borrow some money – what I don’t want to is to put in $10 million in a piece meal piece of crap that’s not going to go another nine years. If we got to bite the bullet, let’s bite the bullet.”
Mr. Vick: “I agree with that. Now let me ask a question, can we do that by Thursday? Is that possible? That may not be realistic to do it in that short length of time.”

Supervisor Tyler: “It may not be, but I don’t think the last time we did, we rushed into it and we spend money and frankly, I think we were misled. I am saying whether it’s an outside consultant come and take a look at it and we know what we are working with, then we can spend money more wisely as opposed to doing something and down the road we are back where we are again. And that is where I am. When we are talking about spending that kind of money, you need to know what you’re buying, you need to look long term; long term strategic planning and say, is this the best that we have; what do other localities have; what’s compatible? “
Mr. Vick: “I understand that and I equate this to computers. You buy a new computer today and there’s new technology in six months, it makes that new computer obsolete. Radio communication equipment is very much the same way. So you’re not going to get a system that somebody’s going to say, we going to guarantee you this for twenty years.”

Supervisor Fly: “What I am saying is to keep it moving along. Our next contact point is Thursday. Bring what you got and we will bring everybody we have in on this thing. I don’t want it to wind up being two months before we get back to you.”

Mr. Edwards: “But to clarify, you’re looking for a plan of implementation starting whenever you say go, to do, to get to where you need to be.”

Chairman Parker: “We don’t want short term fixes for that kind of money. We want long term.”

Mr. Vick: “Everybody is not digital. The problem is that if we go digital, now we’re not going to be able to talk to some people that we can talk to now.

Mr. Edwards: “You will by changing channels.”

Supervisor Fly: “We may be able to phase into this thing. You had a plan for us before and it wasn’t a bad plan, we just didn’t move forward with it for various reasons.”

“
County Attorney Thompson: “So the Board won’t get circular; I would suggest that the Board, rather than just meeting again, Mr. Vick be charged with having a written presentation as to the cost and also document the dates of failure and that should be in writing for the Board, this time around; document the times that this equipment has failed; have different estimates so that he can certify that he has done some competitive shopping around regarding this system and it should be documented and also you should have in writing what MACE or anyone else is planning to do before you proceed to moving forward with a possible emergency resolution. Because this may, Mr. Treasurer, perhaps require a hearing to amend the budget, depending on the cost. So you should have all that documentation.”

Supervisor Fly: “One more question before we move on, what does the State Police do, what are they on; are they digital?” 

Mr. Edwards: “State Police has a brand new STARS Radio system that is basically not compatible with anyone else. My previous job was with the Franklin Police Department; they wanted us to give up our frequencies and to outfit a car, was somewhere around $20,000 per car. Plus after the initial cost, there was a yearly charge.”
Supervisor Fly: “Is that optional to go on their Stars system?”

Mr. Edwards: “I have no idea.”

Chairman Parker: “You’re saying that the State Trooper who rides up and down the road all over the State of Virginia and they can’t talk to all of these counties and towns around here.”
Mr. Edwards: “No, I said their system is not compatible with”
Chairman Parker: “Well then you need to explain compatibility – I understand that word too. Can they communicate with localities?”
Mr. Edwards:” By changing a channel on their radio or picking up a digital radio.”
Chairman Parker: “That’s okay. I just wanted to know what you were saying. They can communicate by changing, that happens all the time; that’s the way we have done it for hundreds of years.”
Mr. Edwards: “And your system is like that now. What the localities cannot do, when I say not compatible, you can’t go to a Sussex car or Emporia car or Dinwiddie car and turn your channel on your radio and talk to them on their channel. You have to go to a common interoperability channel.”
Chairman Parker: “I got it and I am telling you, broad communication systems have always been that way. That’s all I’m saying. There’s no magic to flipping one channel and talking to everybody all over the world; can’t do that. You have to know what their frequencies are; their call signs, you’ve got to flip.”

Item 4b2. Amendment For Townes Contract – Mega Site Industrial Park

George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator, advised that included in their Board packet is a copy of a Short Form Agreement for amending the contract (dated February 9, 2009) with Townes PC. This contract is for the Mega Site Industrial Park located between Route 460 and Beef Steak Road. In the original submission and approved contract, there was an omission in the proposal for Master Planning. Townes has provided this Short Form Agreement to amend the contract and add in the Master Planning piece for the Mega Site Industrial Site Park Project. These services are covered by funding from the Tobacco Commission’s award of $250,000.00 toward the Mega Site Project.

Action Requested:  The Board of Supervisors will need to approve the amended contract to include the Master Planning piece for the Mega Site Project.

County Attorney Thompson advised that he spoke with the Interim County Administrator regarding this and he thought it was going to be reviewed. He further requested that this goes back for further negotiation, prior to signing this document, allow his office to negotiate.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the County Attorney to review the Townes PC Short Form Agreement for amending Contract Dated February 9, 2009.  
Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 4b3. Waverly Rescue Squad Surplus Vehicle Request

George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator, advised that included in the Board’s packet is correspondence received from Captain W. Joseph Green, III, with the Waverly Rescue Squad, requesting a surplus Sheriff’s Department vehicle when the Sheriff purchases his new patrol cars. Furthermore, the Captain is requesting that any emergency warning equipment not needed for the new units be left on the surplus vehicle.

Additionally, Mr. Morrison requested that a surplus Sheriff’s Department vehicle be approved for the Stony Creek Rescue Squad. Prior to the vehicles being auctioned with GovDeals, the Stony Creek Rescue Squad requested a suitable surplus vehicle. At that time, however, none were suitable or operable for their use.


Action Requested:  The Board of Supervisors will need to approve that a surplus vehicle be granted to the Waverly Rescue Squad should any suitable vehicles be available. Additionally, the Board will need to approve a similar vehicle to the Stony Creek Squad as well.

The Sheriff advised that he will have vehicles available within the next thirty days.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of the Sheriff’s Department’s surplus vehicles be granted to Waverly and Stony Creek Rescue Squads, when they become available.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 4b4. T-1 Line Internet Outage at County Complex & Repair Update

George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator, advised that on Thursday, July 7, 2011, Sussex County received severe thunder storms with heavy rain.  At that time, late in the afternoon, around 4:45 p.m., the complex telephones went down. On Friday, July 8, 2011 at approximately 2:30 p.m., the telephone service was restored.  County Administration’s staff diligently kept in contact with Verizon and Pearson’s Appraisal until phones were restored on Friday, July 8, 2011. However, although the phones were restored, it was identified that the internet throughout the County complex was down.  Again, Pearson’s was contacted as well as Verizon. Pearson’s contacted the Virginia Information Technology Agency, which contracts with Verizon for T-1 service. On Friday, July 8, 2011, Verizon tested the T-1 line to the Human Services Building remotely, but also sent out a technician to test the line and verify connectivity.  On Monday, July 11, 2011, Verizon identified two separate issues: (1) an issue with their wiring which they resolved and (2) they identified the buried line on the County’s property from the Human Services Building to the Treasurer’s Office had failed.

There had been knowledge that the buried line between Human Services and the Treasurer’s Office had been failing, but Pearson’s had done their best to patch and repair to keep this line up to carry the T-1 at minimal cost. However, this buried line has failed beyond repair and the County is now running its T-1 connectivity on unreliable fiber overhead, although this is the temporary fix and it is working – at a cost of approximately $3,100.00. The more reliable and permanent fix recommended is to install fiber line from the Human Services Building to the Treasurer’s Office as well as add County Administrative Offices to the system. Not only would these lines support the County’s T-1 line, but could be used in the future for the other connections including the phones if the rest of the buried cable would fail.

Included in the Board packet is an email received from Mr. Jeremy Proffitt with Pearson’s Appraisal which details the aforementioned information and a quote from Honeymac, Inc., the company conducting the connection to the overhead fiber lines, the County’s temporary fix to get the complex up and running with the T-1 line connectivity. The quote from Honeymac is as follows: $9,500.00 to bury and pull the fiber from Social Services to the Treasurer’s Office; $2,000.00 to run fiber from the Social Services to the Treasurer’s Office and $3,781.67 to bury, pull and provide fiber to connect Social Services to County Administration’s mobil unit, at a total cost of $15,281.67.

Just provide an update, Honeymac came back on Saturday to repair the lines and do the work needed to speed up the T-1 line connectivity, which was working on Friday, but very slowly. On Monday, it was down, so Pearson’s had to come back and take care of another piece that had malfunctioned and that was up and running. So on Tuesday, things were up and running at that point. But staff was informed by Pearson’s Appraisal that with the County’s overhead line, there are six fiber cables that carry that information, two have failed already, two are working and two, their connectivity is unknown. So, again this is a temporary fix.  
Action Requested:
The Board of Supervisors may approve and emergency appropriation to approve the permanent repair to the County’s network not to exceed $15,281.67. There has also been a request from the Commonwealth’s Attorney’s Office requesting a separate T-1 line and a quote is being requested for that also and a separate T-1 line for the Sheriff’s Department.
Supervisor Birdsong: “With these lines down, I know that Administration depends on these lines greatly during the course of the day for daily operations. And I know you probably have not calculated, but do you have a rough estimate in your mind as to approximately how much it has cost us in manpower during the timeframe that this line has been down?”
Mr. Morrison: “I couldn’t even begin to give you a quote.”

Supervisor Birdsong: Will it exceed $15,000.00?

Mr. Morrison: “I don’t know about that, but that would probably be real close, if not a little more because the Sheriff’s down with the 911 and Commonwealth’s Attorney’s office was down.”
Supervisor Birdsong: “Where I am going with this is, with what it has cost us in manpower, man hours, close to this figure, even if it’s just 2/3 of this figure, we can’t afford not to fix it.” 
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY to approve the emergency appropriation, if the Finance Committee does not have a problem with it.
Onnie L. Woodruff, Treasurer: “I think what’s going to happen is another temporary fix. And six years ago, paid $2,500.00, set these poles and pulled fiber in. And at that time, I didn’t know, those fiber lines, of course, Ms. Jones, no doubt we would have gotten it connected. These fiber lines were put in multiple pairs, it is six pairs and all of the connections were made by the cable company. Some of the connections were already made, but had not been hooked up. We’ve been six years operating on that old buried telephone line. And the fiber is not hooked up, mainly because, in my opinion Pearson’s didn’t want to hook it up or did not know how to hook it up. They cannot test the line. Once it comes it, I think the Committee needs to look at it. I’m in agreement, we need support; we need back up lines. We need to discuss whether it’s underground or overhead. I know just enough about technology lines to get you in trouble, but there are many different types of overhead lines. We have a pair pulled in and undoubtful connections, Pearson’s person said he cannot test that line to see if it is working. They kept plugging it in and found two with a combination that worked because they were the two that were plugged in at the Human Services Building. It goes from Human Services to the old Administration Building into my building. So therefore, instead of two connections, you’ve got three connections. You’ve got six pairs of lines. You got to match it up in this building; you got to match it up in this building. When the Administration building was put in, the new building was put in, we buried fiber from your Administration to District Court; moved the converter that we had started on with the fiber to convert it to that line in here that was in the old Administration Building. Pearson’s employee told me they moved that in the new courts building. At that time, all of that work that had been done was disassembled and put in the courts buildings. The equipment is still being used and the reason Administration is so slow is because we spent a fortune and we can do a printout for you, you can see and your eyes will be amazed what we spent in technology trying to keep these lines up with the internet. We got antennas that were hanging over the building, down the roof, in the ceiling, trying get wireless over here; trying to get the Sheriff wireless; I think he was down about every week. The Sheriff threw up his hands which we tried to get Pearson’s to do; we had already strung a cable it was the CAT5, it was not fiber over to the Sheriff. The lightning strike a few years ago, took it out. Rather than taking an hour or an hour and thirty minutes pulling another line in, they put in satellite, digital radio waves trying to get it. It’s not effective. Mr. Whitaker, when he was here and Mr. Morrison’s employees, when he came in my office and worked on the computer, they couldn’t believe it was that fast, because they were working wireless. That needs to be fixed and that part, I agree, needs to be taken of. But we really need to; it is an issue with phone lines and I agree with everything Mr. Morrison said, but we need to really sit down and plan. Now I hear something else pop up that’s talking about getting about a T-1 line for the Sheriff; a T-1 line for the Commonwealth’s Attorney. I don’t agree with that. We need to get a technology person that’s going to look out for Sussex County, number one. We can upgrade the T-1 line; one line a lot faster that everybody can utilize. We do need spare backups. I think we got a temporary fix. I think if we can get together, we do need conduits. We discussed this at our original meeting, at least 2 ½; he was talking 1 ¼ inches or 1 ½ inches. That will be hard to pull line from that distance with a cable. We are talking about pulling several telephone lines in with a cable, you need a larger conduit and certainly pull areas, you can grab it and pull it through. If you have to replace this line, you have to pull it in there. So we need, first of all, know how many conduits we are going to bury and what size and where they’re are going to run, if it’s a potential that we are going to come in with another T-1 line, guess what? It’s coming in down here where the telephone comes in at the Human Services Building. So then, are we going to bury another line and bring it in to the Commonwealth’s Attorney? The other option is that you have a potential, the old jail and the old administration building – build a multi-story office complex, in the long run.”
Chairman Parker:  “The Board can form a Committee and meet and fix the problem and the next fix should be a permanent one, whether it is underground, overhead, T-1 or whatever.”

Treasurer: “Nothing in six years had fallen on this line and I did talk with Mr. Cox, who pulled the line in. the poles are in place, the cable and the eyelets that the lines pulls in, he said that in thirty 30 minutes’ time, he can drop a fiber wire here and take his bucket truck and within one hour and thirty minutes can have a cable setting in there.”
Chairman Parker: “Sounds like a temporary fix to me, what bout lightning strike? I think we need a committee to decide the best way to approach this whole complex and get it done and bring it back to us.”

Supervisor Birdsong advised that if Mr. Fly will withdraw his second, he would like to change his motion. 

Supervisor Fly advised that he would only if Mr. Birdsong agrees to serve on the committee.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of forming a Committee to look at fixing the telephone and communications problems at the Courthouse Complex and fix it for a long term fix, not a short term band aid, but knowing the necessity for keeping systems up and going between now and then, Mr. Morrison needs to have the flexibility to do so.
Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 4c. Treasurer’s Report
Mr. Onnie L. Woodruff, Treasurer, advised that it would be a good idea to ask one of the technology staff from Sussex County Schools, to set in on the meeting, that it would be helpful.  
He advised that he has provided each member with the report. He stated that for accounting purposes, the report reflects the financial status of the County on a cash basis. The accruals for the next two months will fluctuate and in most cases will actually show a larger ending fund balance because of the accrual of taxes and other revenue collected through the end of August.  

Twenty–two of the twenty-four different funds used to operate the County carry an ending balance, which is carried forward to the next fiscal year. These ending cash balances total $22,975,000.00 million dollars which reflects an overall decrease of $78,374.00 in all funds.  The General Fund from which regular appropriations are made, had a fund balance increase of $732,178.00. This amount was above the projections because of the $274,154.00 of unused local appropriation to the School Board. The General Fund balance increase occurred without transferring the $501,567.00 budgeted for transfer from the Reserve for Capital Projects Fund and the $501,567.00 from the Reserve for Capital Project Fund was not expended as budgeted.  Mr. Woodruff stated that at the Board’s regular meeting in June, he had indicated that there would be at least a $364,237.00 increase in the general fund by reviewing the general ledger reports and could be possibly as high as $450,000.00 to $5000,00.00 when considering unexpended department balances, in comparison to departments going over their appropriations. He also reported that this could occur without transferring any funds from the Reserve for Capital Projects Funds. 
Mr. Woodruff advised the Board that they have the opportunity to make one or a combination of the options below concerning the increase in the General Fund by $732.178.00.00.
1a. Appropriations for a one-time bonus to full time employees as per recommended 
guidelines in the amount of $159,000.00.
1b. Re-appropriate for FYE 2012, the School Board’s unused portions of FYE 2011 local 
funds transferred from the General Fund in the amount of $274,000.00.
1c. Appropriate a transfer of $299,000.00 from the General Fund to the Reserve Fund for 
FYE 2011. (This will be done with an audit entry in the general ledger for FYE 2011 and 
FYE 2012 increasing the Reserve Fund ending and beginning balance and decreasing the 
General Fund ending and beginning balance. With this option, the General Fund ending 
and beginning balance would decrease to $3,744,113 and the RCPD Fund would increase 
to $9,508,659.00. Also, the first two appropriations will cause the general ledger reports 
to reflect projected expenditures over revenues in the amount of $433,000.00 for FYE 
2012 bringing the General Fund balance back to $3.311 million dollars which would be 
the beginning fund balance for FYE 2011.

2a. Appropriate a transfer of $732,178.00 to the RCP Fund for FYE 2012 which will increase 
the RCP Fund to $9,941,387.00 and decrease the General Fund to $3,310,935.00. This 
could be done with an audit entry causing the ending and beginning balance of the 
General Fund to be compatible with the  prior fiscal year which would aid in financial 
reporting for next fiscal year through fund balance comparison.
2b. Consider any parts of Item one above by an appropriation transfer from the RCPF. The 
general fund appropriations would stay in balance by each appropriation with revenues 
coming in and expenses going out, but the RCPF balance would decrease with each 
appropriated expense.
2c. Appropriate 2a above and make no further appropriations at this time and monitor revenue 
income and assessments through November 2011.

3a. Take no action and leave fund balances as they are at the end of the fiscal year.
Recommendation: To adopt item 2a above, then give strong consideration to 2b and some consideration to 2c.

Supervisor Fly suggested that the Board ask department heads whose budgets are over expended to come before the Board in August to offer and explanation of the overage and then the Board can correct at that time.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appropriates a transfer of $732,178.00 to the Reserve Capital Project Fund for FYE 2011, which will increase Reserve Capital Project Fund to $9,941,837.00 and decrease the General Fund to $3,3310,935.00.
Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of appropriating the amounts of expenditure overage for each of the following departments (1) Public Safety,  $28,790.33; (2) Public Works, $70,694.43; (3) County Attorney, $11,669.27; (4) Commissioner of the Revenue, $12,609.29; (5) Confinement of Inmates, $28,536.85; (6) Circuit Court, $16,650.08; and (7) Clerk of Courts, $14,286.05.
Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR HARRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby acknowledges that Mr. Onnie L. Woodruff, Treasurer, has submitted the delinquent tax list, including the 2006 - 2010 personal property taxes and the 1991 - 2010 real estate taxes, in compliance with Section 58.1-3924 of the Code of Virginia; and
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Treasurer is hereby relieved of the responsibility of advertising the delinquent tax list and is also directed to continue collecting delinquent taxes.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 4d. Commissioner of the Revenue
Mrs. Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue, advised that for Taxable Year 2010, Farm Credit Leasing Services, 5500 South Quebec Street, Greenwood Village, CO 80111 was assessed for farm equipment in error.  Farm equipment is exempted from Local Personal Property Taxation. The assessment value of $81, 480 was entered on Personal Property Book erroneously.

Action Requested: Refund Farm Credit Leasing Services in the amount of $3,951.78.
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves of refunding Farm Credit Leasing Services, 5500 South Quebec Street, Greenwood Village, CO 80111, in the amount of $3,951.78, for Taxable Year 2010.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 4e. Sheriff’s Department – no report

Item 4f1.  Request For Approval of  Payment to Rancorn Wildman

Dr. Charles H. Harris, III, Division Superintendent of Schools, reported that the architect Rancorn Wildman, has submitted a bill for services to this point in the amount of $87,293.00. The services rendered to this point have been for planning and schematic design.  

Action Requested: The Sussex County School Board is requesting that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors pay the current amount owed to Rancorn Wildman

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR HARRELL and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves and appropriates the amount of $87,293.00 for the payment of Invoice #20010 for professional services provided by Rancorn Wildman for the Elementary School Project.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 4g. Director of Social Services – absent

Item 4h. County Attorney – no report

Item 5. Citizens Comments

Comments were heard from the following:

· Anne Joyner, Courthouse District, painting of the Animal Pound

· Debbie Turck, Blackwater District, over expending funds

· Fred Turck, Blackwater District, redistricting 

Item 6. Unfinished Business

Item 6a. eCivis Grants Network
George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator, reported that as requested per the Board of Supervisors, he contacted references listed from the Commonwealth of Virginia as well as touched bases with the eCivis representative to provide the contact and reference information for similar sized localities across the United States. The references contacted include the following:


City of Norfolk, Virginia

Davidson, North Carolina


Chesterfield County, Virginia

Cottonwood, Arizona – Population 11K (2009)


Culpeper County, Virginia

Port Isabel, Texas – Population 6k (2009)


Powhatan County, Virginia

City of Richmond, Virginia

Mr. Morrison explained that he received very positive responses from all localities contacted regarding their use of eCivis.  All localities contacted have been quite complimentary of the eCivis Grant Network and comment that they have used other sources out there including grants.gov (the Federal resource for grants), the Foundation Center and the Fund Book.  Although these other resources were used, the various localities indicated that the benefit of eCivis far exceeds the cost of the subscription.  The City of Richmond indicated that they thoroughly searched for a tool like eCivis, but couldn’t find one that was comprehensive. All localities contacted indicated that they had renewed their contracts with eCivis and some even shared that they renewed for a multiple year contract to assure cost savings.

Some localities contacted indicated that they have received grants eCivis’s research and recommendation for EMS equipment - $8,200, $2,500 for their library, $60,000 for recreation purposes, and have identified grants to purchase AED defibrillators and EMS and fire department equipment.  Other localities indicated that they maintain a spare license to share with non-profit organizations through their communities to aid in their procuring grant assistance to reduce or enhance the amount of local monies provided to them. There are many localities which have signed up for this network; however they are utilizing its full potential. The communities have set up profiles and when eCivis provides contacts or interests links (which number in the hundreds) if not thousands, the locality may not have the resources to follow up and make applications.

As indicated during the June 16, 2011 regularly scheduled Board of Supervisors meeting, eCivis is a sole source vendor and there are no others like it that can duplicate their service. 

Action Requested: The Board of Supervisors are requested to approve the Interim County Administrator to contract with eCivis Grants for Fiscal Year 2012 in the amount of $6,605.00 – for five (5) licenses.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby supports the Interim County Administrator’s recommendation to contract for eCivis Grants Network.

The motion failed due to lack of a second.

Introduction of New County Administrator

Chairman Parker introduced the new County Administrator, Mr. Thomas E. Harris, his wife and daughter.

Mr. Harris advised that he is pleased to have the opportunity to meet with staff and that he sincerely understand the goals of the Constitutional Officers with the Board’s guidance and expertise, he believes that we can get the job done.
Item 6b. Redistricting Plan

Supervisor Fly: "A concern that I have with redistricting; there were nine changes made to the map. My concern tonight, you all spent a lot of time and a lot of stress trying to get to a point where we could all vote on a plan and we did that on June 16th. I don't think anybody is happy with the plan, but we voted on it. My concern tonight and what I am asking us to address tonight is the fact that the plan that we sent to the Justice Department is out of balance. The deviation on the plan, every plan that we made and every plan that we discussed, our deviation was always below the legal limit of 10%. But the plan that we sent to the Justice Department is 11.29% which is obviously over 10%, which is not meeting one of the four mandatory criteria for redistricting. So my question tonight is, shouldn't we follow up with our submission, a corrected plan to bring that deviation under 10%, because it is my opinion that this is not going to be approved we have those four mandatory factors and deviation being one of them and the plan that we submitted was 11.29. So it doesn't meet all the four criteria. Our submission also, if you go in and read the submission papers that we sent, I don't believe are accurate and I do not believe really covers the justification for 11.29% deviation. So I what I would ask the Board to do, if anybody want to ...I think our deviation is where it is because the June 16th map, which this Board approved 6 to 0 with the option or with the revision that allowed the County Attorney to go in and put Lobbs Shop Road in to the Wakefield District, the portion of Lobbs Shop Road in Waverly in to the Wakefield District. That was the motion and passed 6 to 0. Somehow, between the 16th of June and...." 
County Attorney interjected: "Be careful of what you say, because this is in open session and I will exercise my right to sue you."

Chairman Parker: "Go ahead, let him finish."

Supervisor Fly: "Sometime between the 16th of June and the 30th of June, the plan was altered. The plan changed and I've got maps here if you want to see them; I can show you the nine changes. And I think those nine changes is where we run into problems with the deviation, because the request that we made on the 30th to go back in and redo the Lobbs Shop Technical Revision, we put it in; if we just took it back out, the numbers should have been the same. We had a 9.93 deviation before we put Lobbs Shop in; we had a 9.99, we put it in, then we changed it around and it went to 11.29. If we put it in, it was 9.93 and took it out, it should have gone back to 9.93. I know the numbers don't work exactly that way, but my concern is the changes that were made caused our deviation to be altered. And I think we should correct that deviation and submit a follow up letter or plan to the Justice Department so that we correct one flaw in the plan. That's my concern."
County Attorney Thompson: "If I can briefly respond."

Chairman Parker: "Let me get my thoughts together. Let me express my concerns. We have been dillydallying with this thing since April, the redistricting. We have sent in a plan; we retract a plan; we sent in another plan. It seems to me that the last time we voted on June 30th to send this thing in, we were trying to get something up there that would first of all, meet the requirements if we could; secondly to accommodate members of the Board who had brought this issue and wanted to be accommodated and I thought my district, the Town of Waverly bent over backwards fifty times to accommodate. Yes, my district has bent way over backwards to try to accommodate. Because I feel that, I am not a politician and I told you that. I still don't believe I am a politician. But I believe in doing what's right for the majority of the citizens of Sussex County. Harris Parker has no axe to grind. I just want to do what's right for the citizens of Sussex County and move forward. The third part of that, or the second part is that it's going to cost us some money, if we miss this deadline. We are going to forfeit and we will miss the deadline if we start to change this plan right now, because that deadline is when Mr. Attorney?”
County Attorney: "You're past the deadline now. And it's going to be longer. What is happening with it, that plan went out of deviation because this Board, against the recommendation, split that census block and placed those people into the Town of Waverly. The Department of Justice may require this Board, why a 70% minority census was split and primarily blacks were taken out of the Wakefield Election District and put into Waverly with the Board going against advice of counsel, knowing that it would put the plan over the 10% deviation. That is the reason the plan is over the 10% deviation; when you took that census block of primarily majority blacks against the recommendation knowing that plan was 9.9% and split that census block and put into Waverly, that threw that plan off one point some odd percent. the June 16th Plan, the June 16th revision, a Board of Supervisors member requested that revision of bringing Stony Creek down. You have to make an adjustment to keep it at 9.9%. What happens is, it would have put the area over there so Somersfield, which has no census block, the population deviation did not change at all.  Only when you went against the recommendation to split that census block, you've taken this plan out of possible expedited review into normal review because Justice is asking why would you split a majority black census block knowing that plan would be throwing out of deviation, that is the reason the plan is at 11.29% because it was a small amount that was taken out and that is the reason for the 11.29% - nothing else was changed. That is the reason for it."
Chairman Parker: "I want you to address, what kind of time and what is the punishment for us missing the deadline and how if affects our citizens. I am too much concerned about all of this rhetoric about 1.2% over and 1.2% under. I am trying to figure out what's the best way forward to treat the citizens of this County, without delaying so that they can vote and know what district they are in?"

County Attorney: "To get this back on track, I would suggest that the Board pass a unanimous resolution reaffirming what is already the law of Sussex County. The justification that was given, trying to protect the Board; that is the sole reason it's taken the expedited track. That you split a census block knowing it would throw the plan out and Justice is asking me to give  reason why you did it."

Supervisor Fly: "The night that we has these discussion, June 30th, no one on this Board had the mathematical figures to show that it threw the deviation out, nobody. None of us knew that it was going to throw...none of us quite figured it out, the calculations. So, it's not correct."
Chairman Parker: "Let me correct you on one thing. I remember him talking about splitting the census blocks. I am not a highly sophisticated, technical individual, but I am a common sense person. But I do remember him talking about that census block."

Supervisor Fly: "And that's exactly right, but splitting the census block, none of us that night knew that it was going to throw it out of deviation. It was a possibility, but we didn't have the calculations. And what I am saying now, I am not saying throw the plan out, I am saying send a letter to the Justice Department saying throw the plan out. What I am suggesting is that we just sent a resolution adjusting the plan in whatever way we have to make it under the 10% to get it back on track. That's what I am suggesting."
Chairman Parker: "Well, how do we do that?"

Supervisor Birdsong: "All we have to do is the resolution Mr. Fly is talking about and accompany it with the plan that this Board voted on 6 to 0 on June 16th, which our deviation was less than 10% on that plan.  What messed up the deviation on that plan was on the 30th where we came down Lobbs Shop Road. That's what messed the plan. If we just go back to the June 16th plan that this Board voted on six to nothing and send that to the Justice Department with the resolution; we are less than 10% deviation countywide."

County Attorney Thompson: "That's incorrect."

Chairman Parker: "Does anyone here see my concern?"

Supervisor Birdsong:" Yes sir."

Supervisor Fly: "Yes, but I hope you see my concern. I think it's going to be thrown back anyway because it's out of deviation. If we don't correct it, it's going to delay us."

Chairman Parker: "If it's thrown back, we get our monies to help us with the redistricting?"

County Attorney Thompson: "It's not that simple as suggested by the supervisors. This is the law of Sussex County. It's an ordinance. A public hearing would be necessary to amend the plan which I would recommend, if the Board will listen, recommend against at this juncture, we replaced justifications in that plan. One, that Waverly needs houses, which were split, which was a bad thing to do, which I recommended against. These houses that were split on Main Street, the houses that were taken out on Pleasant Springs that split that block, and incidentally six of the houses are vacant - what you have to do now, you have to have a public hearing to amend the ordinance and if you have a public hearing now, given that Justice, I am attempting to push for this plan's approval, given the Board sentiment, that 11.22 doesn't bother Justice. If you want to address Justice, I would ask each Board member that voted to take out that majority black population block to give an articulateable reason for the record, so I can immediately send it to Justice and the plan would be expedited if you have an articulateable. They're alleging that you did it because you took out blacks and weakened the district, even though it was minor. Give an account or reason for the record and well be back on expedited."
Supervisor Harrell: "The reason was simple...Main Street on Waverly shouldn't be in Wakefield District."

County Attorney Thompson: "That will be sent. Does anyone else want to say why?"

Supervisor Fly: "It should never have been put in there. That's the point, if you want to go back to where the water has gone under the bridge - one of the things we worked up for months and months and months at your recommendation was not to split Waverly into the three sections and we came in and we split Waverly into three sections and we went way into Waverly, almost to the railroad track. So I agree with Mr. Harrell. Main Street in Waverly should not be in the Wakefield District and address what you keep...I know the insinuation."
Chairman Parker: "Only one side, don't keep talking Main Street, only one side. And I take responsibility, I gave that as a compromise. I have not heard one citizen in my town, not one, complaining about what I done and that’s a compliment for my district. My district is not complaining about anything at this time."

Supervisor Fly: "But you say we moved a minority census block, but we moved it from one majority minority district to another majority minority district. So I don't see the violation there."

County Attorney Thompson: "We did it to Wakefield. Waverly was at 70% and you still moved it over and we did Wakefield Election District in terms of minority voting strength. Did you intend in moving those black voters to weaken it?"

Supervisor Birdsong: "One June 30th also, the motion was made and it was voted on and passed 4 to 2 again to approve the June 16th redistricting map that we has already previously approved. And the one that was submitted for some reason, whatever reason, however it happened inadvertently, are some changes in what we approved and what was submitted. What was submitted is not what this Board approved either of the two times."
Chairman Parker: "I think we ought to move forward. I think we have debated this long enough.  think we have done the best that we can do and I think it’s up to the courts or it's up to the State of Virginia or up to the federal people to correct it. If they want to correct and think we have done something wrong, then let them move forward with it."

Supervisor Harrell: "There is nothing compact about it either. They have plenty reasons to reject it.”
County Attorney Thompson: "Justice will probably approve this plan because it was a reduction of about point one seven percent. What will make this plan not be an expedited plan is because we have to explain a way, because none of the Board members would intentionally....if you intentionally take one black voter, knowing that it would weaken a district, that is not allowed. but hopefully we have sufficient material, and I would argue and I think that we could get it back."

Chairman Parker: "If they don't want to pass it...explain to us what is it going to cost us in terms of time, we have absentee ballots, people overseas. We won't make the deadline. I predict we will not make the deadline in this County and then we have to go through the redistricting process all over again; they are going to penalize us by not giving us the funds do to it with; then we are going to wind up in the courtroom probably, for what?  As much compromising as I have done to try to get this thing through, I just don't understand it. Why we can't move forward and let somebody else decide. They have not told us that it was wrong."
Supervisor Fly: "My whole intent tonight was just to look for a solution. If there's not a solution, roll on."

Chairman Parker: "Chair calls for the question that we do not take another look at it.”
Supervisor Fly: "There is no need for a motion."

Item 6c. Line of Duty Act

Supervisor Fly advised that there is an item left that the Board needs to act on the Line of Duty Act. The state used to pay basically what was an insurance policy for the deputy sheriffs and volunteer fire fighters who were killed in the line of duty. Their family received $100,000.00. The Commonwealth of Virginia shifted that burden to the County. What the Board needs to decide is whether they will opt in or opt out. Mr. Fly stated that he does not know the exact figures, but the former Director of Finance indicated that it was between $50,000.00 and $60,000.00. 

George E. Morrison, III, Interim County Administrator, stated that he is not familiar with what the cost is going to be because staff could not get a clear list of folks who are active participants or inactive participants with the volunteer rescue squads and fire departments. The Public Safety Coordinator has attempted to get the list several times, but responses were not received from all departments. Therefore staff is unable to provide a certain number of participants or the exact fee.

Supervisor Fly also added that the Board needs to adopt a resolution by July 29, 2011. If no action is taken by the Board, the County is automatically opted in. He advised that all of the Counties around us opted out and set up a $100,000.00 fund. He stated that the former Director of Finance recommended that the Board opt out and set $100,000.00 in an account somewhere and if a fire fighter or deputy got killed, then the County simply pay the $100,000.00.

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue, advised that if the staff needed a listing of the active participants for the fire and rescue, her office gets a listing each year.

County Attorney Thompson advised that he believes that the former Director of Finance suggested that the County pay the insurance premium.

Chairman Parker advised that the Board can vote and tell the County Administrator to look at the insurance option. 

Supervisor Tyler advised that this item was discussed at length at the VACo Conference. He stated that most localities, from understanding is moving towards the insurance. 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors authorize the County Administrator's Office to look at options in the Line of Duty Act and authorize them to contact each member by phone to vote on one of the two plans.

County Attorney Thompson advised that the motion could be "to authorize County Administration to review all insurance options regarding the policy and to pick the one that has the most coverage at the least cost to the County" but the Board cannot vote by phone.

Supervisor Tyler recommended that the Board could authorize County Administration to make an administrative decision.

Chairman Parker suggested that staff look at three plans, NACo, VACo and the State.

Supervisor Birdsong reminded the Board that the Finance Committee has a meeting scheduled next week to discuss finances. There will be four Board members in that meeting. He further advised that the Board can adjourned this meeting until then and can vote on it Thursday and Mr. Morrison act on it Thursday afternoon and that will be before the July 29th deadline.

County Attorney Thompson advised that technically the Board, as a whole, is the Finance Committee and suggested that if the Board adjourns, some resolution to the effect to handle these Committees, that the Board as a whole adjourns and it authorizes the Finance Committee to meet regarding the following topics on a specific day and report back to the full Board.

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR HARRELL and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes County Administration to opt in to the Line of Duty Act and to pay the premium.

Voting aye: Supervisors Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Item 7. New Business

David Bailey, Attorney with Sussex Service Authority  

Mr. Bailey: "I am a Senior Counselor with the Environmental Law Group, which is firm which specializes in environmental law in Richmond Virginia and counsel for the Sussex Service Authority. I don't know how much the Board members know. There is a storm brewing clearly in Sussex County and I guess the easiest way to say this is the Authority's budget is very limited. They have counsel, but they only use counsel very sparingly. It's kind of almost like you had meeting every month, but you told the counsel to stay home and when somebody sues you or threatens to sue you, you bring in the County Attorney to try to fix it. That's pretty much the way things have been with the authority, because of their budget situation. They get me to help occasionally on some permit applications, but it's pretty much at the end of the game. They get me to help with issues when DEQ is on their backs, which is increasingly a problem. And that's the way be have been going on for a while and that seems to work for the Authority; it seems to at least to have met their minimum needs and that's fine. But what Mr. Gunnell and the Authority members are facing now is one, they’re going to get hit with increased permit requirements for the facilities that they have in waste treatment and those numbers are going to be most likely in the seven figures, not six figures. And there's going to be questions about the validity or the basis for those numbers that are going into this permit. Some of you heard if you attended the last meeting. Probably the most critical thing and the thing that affects this County and the Authority is this growing storm over groundwater resources. It's late and I am not sure you want the twenty five minute presentation on why it's such a nightmare in groundwater resources. The short answer is the Authority is getting timely processing of groundwater permits from DEQ. DEQ is short staffed, short funded and is floundering a little bit themselves. All of their latest regulations which were designed with this issue are at the Governor's Office. They have been there a while and my sources tell me there are political issues there. One of the things, for example, in these new regulations is bringing in all of the Counties in northern Virginia, which had not been participants in the groundwater permitting program, even though all of the scientist agree that these northern Virginia counties all impact the groundwater program. But for you as a County, for your efforts to try to grow, in your efforts to invest money that you been receiving, the Tobacco money, other sources, there is a real possibility here that you're not going to get or the Authority is not going to get permits for very much groundwater. And you don’t have any surface water supplies that I know of. So your whole economic future is on the line with these permits. That’s about as simple as I can say it. So I don’t know exactly what it is I am here for tonight. Mr. Morrison just asked me to come. So I am here and in terms of what the need is, if I had to tell you what I thought that the need was, I think the authority need more legal help, how they get it, how they spend their money or whether the County assists them or whether you want to go on your own in some other way; I think more legal and perhaps probably more consulting work has to go into these groundwater permits and you may have to do it yourself because DEQ simply doesn’t have the money and they are going to spend time and effort here. That’s as frank as I can be. You have got to take care of yourself.”
Supervisor Birdsong:  “My understanding is, from these meetings, is that the DEQ has threatened to cut the groundwater withdrawal permit for the prison location of the system. If they cut that permit level that they have indicated, you will not be able to build one residential house out there that’s not already there now. If they only allocate what the permit is for at this point in time, match the same quantity, the only thing that we can hope to do in the county in that area is to develop our industrial park that’s on 460 and then the Service Authority will be tapped out as far as water is concerned. In our meeting that we had the other day, my understanding is that these gentlemen from DEQ, the paperwork has been submitted to DEQ approximately 17 months. These gentlemen from DEQ which was the head man from Richmond and the man that makes the decisions as to yes or no whether the permit is granted or not, didn’t even know that the permit, paperwork was in to redo those permits until two weeks ago.”
David Bailey: “Somebody on this Board or somewhere went to the lieutenant governor and shook the tree a little bit.”
Supervisor Birdsong: “Now, that has happened, the Chairman of the Board at the Service Authority called the lieutenant governor’s office and complained; that’s why they had the meeting the other day at the Service Authority, because the lieutenant governor’s office complained. Comment was made by Mr. Gunnell that he thought it was a political issue. Of course, DEQ denied that. But from what I saw and what I’ve heard, it is totally political as to who gets the water and who does not get water. So we need to use whatever means we can to shake the bushes as hard as we need to shake them and all of the political support that we can get to apply pressure to the lieutenant governor’s office because that’s where the pressure came from that got DEQ down here this week to start with. So we know where the button is to push and get results and that’s the lieutenant governor’s office. That’s where we need to be pushing buttons at, right there. And we need to be double pushing.”
David Bailey: “That’s where the jobs initiatives area is. You’re trying to grow and expand. The political part of this has been going on for a long time and it isn’t going to be resolved instantly here. It goes back to 1992 when the General Assembly passed the act. The General Assembly pretty much directed everybody’s using groundwater, you get a permit, telling DEQ how much you want and DEQ issue the permits and they did not adequate scientific data and as the years have passed, DEQ now candidly admits they over allocated the aquifer. They have issued permits for more groundwater than there is.”
Chairman Parker: “Like Chesterfield and Henrico, they are getting all the water.”

David Bailey: “It is all over, but it is particularly acute along a narrow strip of land, along 95, which simply happens at the upper part of the aquifer. So what DEQ is taking, whenever one of these permits come up, they are grabbing and Mr. Gunnell said very appropriately and I asked them when I was too at the same meeting, we went through this huge water conservation program, they have a big laundry there and he saved that water and DEQ is going to take it, because they say they ‘we have to make up for the fact that we over allocated’ and the political problem start to arise and when communities try to conserve if that’s what’s going to happen, who going to conserve; what’s the future in that and then there is this balance, there’s permits all up and down this corridor that are being considered by DEQ they are being considered at different times. So you come here and you say “okay your permit is up now, there is not enough groundwater left, so we’re going to take yours’ and somebody else comes along the line, six to nine months later, there’s a little more water left now because we took from Sussex County. So that’s kind of where the political pressure comes in. I think some of the DEQ people are trying to do this right, but quite frankly, I think Mr. Birdsong is absolutely right, if you look out for your interests, whether you do it by lawyers or by consultants or do it by politics, no one else is going to look out for your interests in this area and its vital to this county.”
Chairman Parker: “Those are some good points that he just made. I think most of us sitting on this Board can understand what’s requires; what we have to do and how it happens. The fact of the matter is some heavy lifting hast to be done up in the Governor’s Office to try to make sure we get our fair share.”
David Bailey: “You are going to have to do more than trying to apply political pressure because you’re a small county in a big state. I don’ know how much political pressure you can affectively apply. It’s one thing to get the director of DEQ to come down and talk to the Authority, beyond that, you’re going to be competing with everybody else so you may need to think, since DEQ does not have the resources, you may have to consider doing groundwater work on your own, because DEQ isn’t going to do it. They are going to work with the models they have; they are going to work with the information they have and go with it and then if you ask your lawyer to go sue them and stop it, you don’t have anything to fight their arbitrary and capricious decision with, but it’s based on whatever groundwater data they have and that’s what going to happen. So you are in two troubles right now. They don’t have the ability to do well water geology type consulting work; they need to do the augment DEQ’s decision and they don’t have the legal assistance to keep them out of trouble before it hits the fan. So I am working with Mr. Gunnell, Mr. Birdsong and everybody else on the Authority right now to do what I can, but I spend very little time with the Authority. 
Chairman Parker: “So the Authority doesn’t have the funds?”

David Bailey: “They can make their own case, but basically they are half staffed. They are in heavy indebtedness; bonded indebtedness; they are operating levels are the same things you guys are dealing with. They can’t keep taxing people; they have put their money and their efforts in operating their plants, and they do a good job.”
Chairman Parker: “We will certainly take a look at that and discuss it at another time. We need water to operate down here; we need permits, no doubt about it. They could probably cut us short in our development we don’t get the necessary permits. Maybe we need to discuss it at the August meeting – to get all the information as to whose buttons we might need to push up there. We’ve got some heavy weights too, we are rural, but we have some heavy weights.”
Supervisor Fly: “We have the new County Administrator’s thing we have to do and I would like to go into Closed Session. I have a matter I’d like to take up and I don’t remember us taking it out, but this is housekeeping. We need to make a motion because of bringing the new County Administrator on and when we have our next meetings don’t match.”
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG and carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby transfers full County Administrator responsibilities to Mr. Thomas E. Harris, effective August 1, 2011; and
FURTHER RESOLVED that Mr. Thomas E. Harris’ name be added immediately, to the signature cards at the banks as the County representative; to authorize Mr. Harris to approve all warrants and sign all County checks, effective August 1, 2011.
Voting aye: Supervisor Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler
Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Supervisor Tyler advised that there is no Closed Session on the agenda.

Chairman Parker advised that Closed Session is on the agenda.

Supervisor Fly stated that the Board started to take it out, but they did not.

Mr. Woodruff distributed copies of the budget to each Board member and provided extra copies to the Assistant to the County Administrator.

Chairman Parker: “Just as a general update, we did get all of the contracts signed. Mr. Morrison’s contract was signed and the County Administrator’s contract was signed. So all of that has been taken care of, just for the record.
Supervisor Fly: “No, that’s not correct Mr. Morrison’s contract never went to the Personnel Committee.”
Chairman Parker: “It may not have went to the Personnel Committee, but you guys told me in a resolution to sign it.”
Supervisor Fly: “Not Mr. Morrison’s contract. It hadn’t been approved by the Board yet. You sent it to Personnel Committee and the Personnel Committee didn’t meet.

Supervisor Birdsong: “In the last meeting, you wanted the Personnel Committee to look at it and get back with you and the Personnel Committee did not meet. Mr. Tyler cancelled the Personnel Committee meeting.”

Supervisor Fly: “This Board did not approve that contract.”

Chairman Parker: “Well, before we go into Closed Session, there was a motion, I remember, we had a discussion phase in Closed Session as to what the salary requirements were. We instructed the Attorney to draft up a contract for the Assistant County Administrator, Deputy County Administrator, whatever his title is. I recall that happening. And you’re saying there’s nothing in the record that says that we were supposed to sign the contract?”

Supervisor Fly: “It was supposed to go to the Personnel Committee for us to work the contract and bring back to the Board for approval.”

Chairman Parker: “We worked the contract and we approved what the contract was.”

Supervisor Birdsong: “If my memory serves me correctly, we had a copy of the contract that Mr. Thompson drew up and a counter proposal by Mr. Morrison and the Personnel Committee was supposed to meet and go over it with Mr. Morrison and come to an agreement. We never met because the meeting was cancelled.”

Chairman Parker: “Is that your understanding Attorney as to what happened?”

County Attorney Thompson: “I leave that to the Board unless they need a legal opinion on something. I leave this to the Board. You all debate this one.”

Chairman Parker: “That might have been what happened, but when I left this Board meeting after we approved what the salary was in Closed Session and we told you about the contract. My understanding was that the Chairman of the Board would sign the contract. I signed the County Administrator’s contract and I signed the Deputy County Administrator’s contract.”
Supervisor Fly: “We authorized the Chairman to sign the County Administrator’s contract. Mr. Morrison had two contracts – you sent it to the Personnel Committee for us to review. Mr. Morrison was supposed to be at the Personnel Committee to work out the contract and bring it back to the Board of approval. The Personnel Committee meeting was cancelled, I think illegally, but anyway, it was cancelled. We never met with Mr. Morrison. We never reviewed the two contracts.”

Supervisor Birdsong: “We had two contracts at our last meeting, one Mr. Thompson drew up and one was Mr. Morrison’s counter proposal.”

Chairman Parker: “Okay. Now I guess I ask for legal opinion on how we get out of this one and redo it.”

County Attorney Thompson: “The contract that was prepared; there was a second contract. That contract, I see both arguments, but if that contract was modified in any way, the Board has to approve anything that was modified, and thus the entire contract.”

Chairman Parker: “It was modified; one line was lined out in it.”

Supervisor Birdsong: “The one that was lined out was the one that was Mr. Morrison’s counter proposal contract.”

Chairman Parker: “You see what happens when things break down and we don’ get it right the first time. I left this Board thinking that you wanted me to sign off on both contracts and that was my understanding when I left here. When somebody came to me with the contract, a prepared contract – I rather you not prepare anything if the Board didn’t give me any authority. Don’t send me anything over there to sign if there’s no…..I just assumed…..I know I remember the clear cut authority to sign for the County Administrator.”
Supervisor Fly: “If I could, could I ask you who presented you the contract for the Assistant County Administrator?”

Chairman Parker: “It came from the Attorney.”

County Attorney Thompson: “You all have both of them. I gave all of you the one that I had and Mr. Morrison presented one to you all.”

Chairman Parker: “Maybe I was hasty, I don’t know. Well, we can void it if you want to void it. We can void it, Personnel are you going to meet or what are we going to do? I am asking the question.”

Supervisor Tyler: “Sure we can meet if that is the wishes of the Board to do that, more than happy to. But if you already executed one, what are you going to do with the one you executed?”

Chairman Parker: “I don’t know, I am asking. All I am trying to do is to do the will of the Board. If that wasn’t the will of the Board, then we can undo what I’ve done, I guess.”
Supervisor Birdsong: “We had two contract proposals given to us last meeting and when we left here last time, the motion was made to adjourn for a Personnel Committee meeting, date and time. And the night before, after five o’clock, I got an email from Mr. Morrison that it had been cancelled.”
Chairman Parker: “We need to go in Closed Session to get in details.”

County Attorney Thompson: “What’s the subject matter for the Closed Session?”

Supervisor Fly: “Personnel, contracts and employee performance.”

Chairman Parker: “The Chair will entertain a motion that we go into Closed Session so we can get this stuff done.”

County Attorney Thompson: “You have taken it off the docket, are you putting it back on the agenda?”

Supervisor Fly: “I don’t think we took it off, we started to, but we didn’t.”

County Attorney Thompson: “You took it off.”

Mr. Morrison: “We said Personnel; I said omit that one, take it out, replace it with a matter of possible litigation. Mr. Thompson said no – no litigation because they have already discussed this in an open meeting and that’s why we have no Closed Session on there.”

Chairman Parker: “But we can add it. Is there any legal obligation why we can’t add it?”

County Attorney Thompson: “No, you all can….but you’re already discussing this thing. This is an open session.”
Chairman Parker: “The only thing I just said was we were talking about it and I signed the contract. What’s illegal about that?”

County Attorney Thompson: “No one saying it’s illegal. There are two parts that are certainly, Economic Development Director, Assistant County Administrator; the salaries….all of those, you all agreed to the three year part of the contract. That part is without doubt, but if anything was changed in terms of that, the other things….”
Supervisor Birdsong: “We had two separates contracts before – one that you drew up and one that Mr. Morrison proposed as a counter contract. We never discussed the differences between the two. That’s why the Chairman asked for the Personnel Committee to take a look at it and to be brought back to the Board.”

Chairman Parker: “I am asking one simple question, what’s illegal?”

Supervisor Tyler: “Point of order, no. Once you adopt your agenda in a public body and your public has left, you cannot go back at the end of your meeting and add something back to your agenda.” 

Supervisor Fly: “The Board is still in open session.”

Supervisor Tyler: “You can’t do that. You cannot adopt an agenda and then at the end of your meeting, go an add Personnel to your agenda. You can’t do that.”

Supervisor Fly: “I don’t think we took it off the agenda, that’s my opinion.”

Supervisor Tyler: “It was taken off the agenda and when you take it off the agenda and adopt your agenda, you can’t go back at the end and add it back. You can’t do that. 
Supervisor Fly: “I don’t think we took it off.”

Supervisor Tyler: “We took if off,  really. But I don’t have a problem if the Board…”

Supervisor Fly: “I don’t mind discussing it in the public.”

Supervisor Tyler: “But it’s illegal to discuss it in the public.”

Supervisor Fly: “Then we better go in Closed Session then.”

County Attorney Thompson: “You can’t do it. You all are going to have to do it another time, Mr. Fly.”

Supervisor Tyler: “You all are going to get yourself in trouble”

Supervisor Fly: “We have a situation where our Chairman…..”

County Attorney Thompson: “Mr. Fly, you can’t really……no if you do this, it’s going against the collective integrity of the Board putting this in, but secondly, I would suggest that you have another meeting and go properly in Closed Session, letting the public know it. You can’t do this now because you are violating a Freedom of Information.”
Supervisor Fly: “You are playing games. I understand the games. We have done so much bull (expletive) in this committee for the last eight years and now you are going to come up with this? Give me a break. We have a contract signed by our Chairman that’s illegal.”

County Attorney Thompson: “You shouldn’t say that for the integrity of the Board, if not the law.”

Supervisor Fly: “We lost integrity a long time ago.”

County Attorney Thompson: “I try to keep mine, believe it or not.”

Supervisor Birdsong: “We have a contract that’s been signed that is not a valid contract because the Board did not approve it. So that contract needs to be voided until the Personnel Committee can meet and go over the two proposed contracts and come back to this Board with a recommendation.”
Chairman Parker: “Okay, here is something we can do, still in Open Session. We are not in Closed Session, we are still in Open Session, does everybody agree to that?

All stating yes.

Chairman Parker: “The Chair will entertain a motion that the contract that I signed for the Deputy County Administrator becomes null and void until it goes before the Personnel Committee and come back for a regular motion.”

County Attorney Thompson: “….Not accepted….. by the Board of Supervisors and refer to the Personnel Committee.”

Chairman Parker: “I didn’t say not accepted, I said was null and void; that means it’s out; is that the same thing? Or you don’t want to use null and void.”

County Attorney Thompson: “Just legal stuff, be careful what you say.”
ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER that the contract will be referred to the Personnel Committee.
Chairman Parker: “Because I signed the contract; it’s got to be null and void first.”

Supervisor Birdsong: “May I make a motion?”

Chairman Parker: “Yes.”

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG that the contract with the Deputy County Administrator that was improperly signed be null and void as of this date.

County Attorney Thompson: “That’s an improper motion. I am trying to be objective. A contract that was signed regarding the Assistant County Administrator/Director of Economic Development, be referred to the Personnel Committee to determine whether it shall be ratified or not ratified or a substitute contract.”

Supervisor Fly: “Let me go back in history just a little bit. You all may remember, Mr. Thompson has already alluded to it. When I was the Chairman and signed a contract that I thought had been approved by this Board allowing the Town of Wakefield to develop a football field for the youth of Waverly, this Board did everything but hang me on a cross and put thorns in my head; in fact I was accused of being a criminal and I was accused and was threatened with lawsuits, from members of this Board, was threatened to be sanctioned by this Board and it spurred on this ridiculous Code of Conduct that we approved, that’s where it all came from. And now, the same people on this Board that want to hang me on the cross are going to say, “let this   one just go’ I am not yielding, no sir. What’s good for the goose is good for the gander, buddy.”
Chairman Parker: “I don’t think we were going to hang you on the cross. But I don’t particularly care where they hang me and the way you want to do it. (Expletive) that’s just my take on it. (Expletive) I have been hung by better people, but anyway, what I am trying to do is get straight clarity; something that’s legally binding and clarity. The contract is null and void because two of the Board members say I didn’t have the authority to sign it, simple. Now can we get a motion on that to remove it because it’s null and void.”
Supervisor Birdsong: “I’ll make that motion.”

Supervisor Fly: “Second.”

Chairman Parker: “Alright, you got it for the record that the contract that I signed, what was the date, get the date on it, become null and void until we send it to the Personnel Committee and they come back with the recommendation.”

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BIRDSONG, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried: RESOLVED that the contract for the Deputy County Administrator, that was improperly signed by the Chairman on July 15, 2011 become null and void until it is forwarded to the Personnel Committee.
Supervisor Birdsong: “Because we have two contracts to review.”

County Attorney Thompson: “And again, Mr Fly, you will recall, I handled your case a little gently. I didn’t say illegal or none of that. You all have integrity, you have to look out for each other. But secondly, three things have been approved by the Board of Supervisors; the salary, title of Economic Development Director and similar benefit to that of the County Administrator. Those have been approved. If you null and void the entire contract, those three things still remain.”
Supervisor Birdsong: “The reasons I say we have to null and void this darn contract is number one, we had two contracts, one that you drew up and one that Mr. Morrison counter proposed on; the one with the lines through it, the one that Mr. Morrison counter proposed. That’s the one I understand that was signed. Nobody on this Board, except for that one night had any time to look at that contract. That’s why the Chairman requested the Personnel Committee to look at it, because he was surprised that the Personnel Committee has not reviewed.”
County Attorney: “You all are going a little too far with a personnel matter here. Please refer it. You all really don’t need to keep talking like this on a personnel matter.”

Supervisor Tyler: “There’s a motion on the floor.”

Supervisor Fly: “To null and void the contract.”
Chairman Parker: “It has been moved and properly seconded; the whole contract of the Assistant County Administrator/Director of Economic Development; let me give you the date that I signed it, so there will be no doubt with what we are talking about. Executed the 15th day of July 2011, by Harris Parker, Sussex Board of Supervisors Member and Chairman. Its’ been moved and properly seconded, any further discussion?

County Attorney Thompson: “You all have…excepting the salary, the monies. The record should show….”
Supervisor Tyler: “Don’t muddy up the water. The title, the salary are already approved.” 

County Attorney Thompson: “Salary, length of time and title have been approved.”

Supervisor Fly: “It’s already been done.”
Supervisor Tyler: “The salary, the title (another word which was not clear) is already approved. That’s what the problem is.”

Chairman Parker: Any further discussion?  Chairman hears no discussion; all in favor of said motion, say “aye.” 

Voting aye: Supervisor Birdsong, Fly, Harrell, Parker, Tyler

Voting nay: none

Absent: Supervisor Caple

Supervisor Fly: “Just so I am clear, you are telling me that I cannot go into Closed Session?”
Chairman Parker: “I have not told you anything yet.”

Supervisor Fly: “Let me ask a question then. On our agenda, the Closed Session was put on the agenda, for a purpose.”

Chairman Parker: “It’s a standard.”

Mr. Morrison: “It’s always left on there for Closed Session. It was left on there from the last time for Personnel and was not omitted for this meeting.”

Chairman Parker: “What do you want to do, Mr. Board member? Do you want to go in Closed Session? Is there any law that says we can’t…..”
County Attorney Thompson: “You all are going real close to talking about personnel and private matters. You all are going to get sued.”
Chairman Parker: “What’s so urgent about this, may I ask?” 

Supervisor Tyler: “You’re going to get somebody sued. You can’t do it. Legally, you can’t do it. Check it out Mr. Thompson. You all go into Closed Session, I’m leaving.”
County Attorney Thompson: “I’m leaving.”

Chairman Parker: “Well, legally we can’t into Closed Session; that’s the advice I am getting from my attorney. I ought to make you put that in writing.”
Supervisor Fly: “Let it go on record, you make a jackass out of me once, but it won’t happen again.”

Chairman Parker: “On advice of the County Attorney, legally we cannot go into Closed Session, if it was not approved on the agenda. Am I understanding you right?”
Supervisor Tyler: “To protect the Board.”

County Attorney Thompson: “That is correct.”

Chairman Parker: “So the next motion is that we recess.” 

County Attorney Thompson: “I have been talking with the Attorney General and here’s a motion that I am going to suggest to the Board; that the Board as a whole adjourns, however, it authorizes its Finance Committee to recess to whatever meeting date that is scheduled to discuss the Emergency Radio Communications Hardware Financing. The Finance Committee to review recommendations contained in the July 14, 2011 letter by the County Treasurer, excluding 2a and 16e and to report back to the Board of Supervisors. You had a third thing, but you appointed an independent committee regarding the Emergency Radio Communication Hardware, options for financing. That is another thing you referred but you also appointed a committee. But those three things. You have to start announcing what you all going to be doing at these meetings and I suggest the Board as a whole reserving the right of the Finance Committee to meet to discuss these specific things and report back to the Board as a whole.”

Supervisor Tyler: “Are we saying that if the Finance Committee will recess to another date and to discuss a and c, in the interim, another fiscal issue comes up, which is not listed because we are not aware of…….”
County Attorney Thompson: “Notice to the citizens at the end of these meetings. If another fiscal, well you want to reserve and any additional fiscal matters which may come up. You can do it that way.”

By general consensus, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors adjourned as a whole, reserving unto the right, the Finance Committee and the Personnel Committee to meet on Thursday, July 28, 2011, beginning at 9:00 a.m., in the Conference Room of the County Administration Building.
